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VIETNAM FINANCIAL SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
INVESTMENT SECURITIES Independence — Liberty - Happiness
CORPORATION
No: 156/2025/CV-VISC HaNoi, August 14", 2025

REGULAR DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To: State Securities Commission of Vietnam
Vietnam Exchange
Hanoi Stock Exchange
Hochiminh Stock Exchange

Pursuant to Clause 3, Article 14 of Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC dated November
16, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Finance, guiding the disclosure of information o
the securities market, Vietnam Financial Investment Securities Corportation (VIS

30™ June 2025 for to the Hanoi Stock Exchange as follows:

I. Organization Name: VIETNAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIE .
CORPORATION

- Stock Code: VIG M4 ching khoén: VIG

- Address: Ist Floor & 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street,
Tu Liem Ward, Hanoi City

- Tel: +84 243514 9999 Fax:

- Email: info@visc.com.vn Website: visc.vn

2. Disclosed Information:
Reviewed Interim Financial Statements for the six months period ended 30" June
2025:

Separate Financial Statements (for listed companies without subsidiaries or
those without superior-level accounting units but with dependent units);

[] Consolidated Financial Statements (for listed companies with
subsidiaries);

- [ Aggregated Financial Statements (for listed companies with dependent
accounting units operating under a separate accounting system)

- Cases requiring explanation:

+ The audit organization issues an opinion other than an unqualified opinion on
the financial statements (for audited financial statements in 2024):

[ Ives No
Explanation document in case of "Yes":
[ Yes [ INo

r
Ky boi: CONG TY CO PHAN CHUNG KO@AN DAU TU TAI CHINH VIET NAM
KY ngay: 14/8/2025 19:06:41

Signature Not Verified



+ After-tax profit in the reporting period differs by 5% or more before and after
the audit, or there is a transition from loss to profit or vice vers
|Ei No

L] Yes
Explanation document in case of "Yes"
[1Yes ] No

+ After-tax corporate income profit in the income statement changes by 10% or
more compared to the same period last year

Yes [INo
Expgétion document in case of "Yes"
Yes [1No

+ After-tax profit in the reporting period is a loss, transitioning from profit in the
same period last year to a loss or vice versa

] Yes 1 No
Explanation document in case of "Yes"
[ Yes [ 1 No

This information has been published on the company’s website on 19/04/2025
the link: https://visc.com.vn/vi/news/quan-he-co-dong-3132.spp

3. Report on transactions with a value of 35% or more of Total Assets in 2024: JNb *

We commit that the disclosed information is truthful and bear full responsibility be
the law for the disclosed content.

Afttachments: Representative of the Organization
o Reviewed Interim Financial GENERAL DIRECTOR
Statements for the six months (Signatuee fiiltname, position, and seal)

s

period ended 30 June 2025
¢ Explanation document

Duong Quang Trung
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

STATEMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

The Executive Management of Viet Nam Financial Investment Securities Corporation (hereinafter called “the
Company”) presents this report together with the interim combined financial statements of the Company for
the six months period ended 30t June 2025.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Viet Nam Financial Investment Securities Corporation was established under Business Registration Certificate
No. 0102614143, initially issued on 11%t January 2008, and amended for the 7™ time on 13™ December 2024,
by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment. The Company operates in the securities business under
License No. 88/UBCK-GPHBKD dated 115t January 2008, along with subsequent amended licenses issued
by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, AND EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT

The members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, and the Executive Management of the
Company during the period and to the date of this statement are as follows:

Board of Directors

Full name Position
Mr. Nguyen Phuc Long Chairman
Mr. Duong Quang Trung Deputy Chairman
Ms. Sao Thi Thanh Member
Mr. Nguyen Xuan Bieu Member
Mr. Nguyen Viet Viet Member
Board of Supervisors
Full name Position
Ms. Pham Thi Tu Anh Head of the Supervisory
Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Oanh Member
Ms. Vu Thi Thanh Hai Member
Executive Management
Full name Position Date of appointment/dismissal

Mr. Duong Quang Trung

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Nguyen Thi Thu Hang
Ms. Pham Hong Nhung

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Deputy Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 18t August 2025

Legal representatives

The legal representative of the Company during the year and to the date of this statement is Mr. Duong Quang
Trung — Chief Executive Officer.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

STATEMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT (continued)
EVENTS ARISING AFTER THE END OF THE PERIOD

There are no significant events occurring after the period, which needs to be adjusted or presented in these
interim financial statements for the six months period ended 30" June 2025.

AUDITORS

International Auditing and Valuation Company Limited has been appointed to review the interim financial
statements of the Company for the six months period ended 30th June 2025.

THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Executive Management of the Company is responsible for preparing the interim financial statements,

which give a true and fair view of the interim financial position of the Company as at 30" June 2025, and its

operating results and its interim cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with Vietnamese

Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to interim financial

reporting. In preparing these interim combined financial statements applicable to securities companies, The

Executive Management is required to:

¢ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

o Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business; and

o Design and implement an effective internal control system for the purpose of properly preparing and
presenting the financial statements so as to minimize errors and frauds.

The Executive Management of the Company is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are
kept, which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the interim financial position of the Company and
that the interim combined financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting
regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting applicable to securities companies.
The Executive Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other irregularities.

The Executive Management confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in
preparing these interim combined financial statements.

DISCLOSURE OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

The Executive Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30" June 2025 and of the results of its
operations, its cash flow statement and its statement of changes in owners' equity for the six months period
then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Viethamese Enterprise Accounting
System, accounting guidance applicable to securities companies and statutory requirements relevant to
preparation and presentation of separate financial statements.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

STATEMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT (continued)
COMMITMENT ON INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Executive Management confirms to have complied with Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31+
December 2020, issued by the Prime Minister, which details the implementation of certain provisions of the
Securities Law. The Company has not violated its obligations regarding information disclosure as stipulated in
Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC dated 16t November 2020, issued by the Ministry of Finance, which provides
guidance on information disclosure in the securities market. Circular No. 68/2024/TT-BTC dated 18"
September 2024, amends and supplements several provisions of the circulars regulating securities trading on
the securities trading system; clearing and settlement of securities transactions; operations of securities
companies; and information disclosure in the securities market.

For and on behalf of the Executive Management,

Mr DUONG QUANG TRUNG
Chief Executive Officer
Hanoi, 14" August 2025
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Cong ty TNHH Kiém toan va Binh gia Quéc té " n ﬂ
International Auditing and Valuation Company Limited

AUDIT AND VALUATION

No. 0707/2025/BCSX/IAV
REVIEWED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION REPORT

To: Shareholders, Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Executive Management
VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Viet Nam Financial Investment
Securities Corporation ("the Company") as prepared on 14" August 2025 and set out on pages 6 to
51, which comprise the interim statement of financial position as at 30" June 2025, the interim income
statement, the interim cash flow statement and the interim statement of changes in owners' equity for
the six months period ended 30t June 2025 and the notes thereto.

The Executive Management's responsibility

The Company's Executive Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
interim financial statements in accordance with Viethamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System, accounting guidance applicable to securities companies and statutory
requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of interim financial statements, and for such
internal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and
presentation of the interim financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the interim financial statements based on our review
conducted in accordance with Viethamese Standard on Review Engagements 2410 — Review of
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.

The review of interim combined financial information consists primarily of making inquiries, mainly of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
Vietnamese Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we
would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion.

Auditor’s Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the
Company’s interim financial position as at 30t June 2025, its interim financial performance, interim
cash flows, and changes in equity for the six months period then ended, in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting
guidelines applicable to securities companies, and relevant legal regulations on the preparation and
presentation of interim financial statements.
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REVIEWED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION REPORT (continued)

Other issues

The interim financial statements for the period ended 30" June 2024 and the financial statements for
the fiscal year ended 315t December 2024 have been reviewed and audited by another independent
auditor. The auditors expressed an unqualified audit opinion on the interim financial statements on 13
August 2024 and the financial statements on 31t March 2025.

“DUONG VAN THIEU
Deputy Director
Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 5353-2025-283-1
INTERNATIONAL AUDITING AND VALUATION COMPANY LIMITED
Hnoi, 14" August 2025
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION

Form B01a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Opening balance

VND

As at 30" June 2025
Closing balance
ASSETS Code Note VND
CURRENT ASSETS
A. (100 = 110 + 130) 100 201,482,449,063
l. Financial Assets 110 200,133,595,985
1. Cash and cash equivalents 111 51 54,227,853,160
1.1. Cash 111.1 50,227,853, 160
Cash equivalents 111.2 4,000,000,000
Financial assets at fair value through
: , ,000
profit or loss (FVTPL) L %2 21,489,000.9
3. Receivables 117 5.3 47,170,607,584
31 Receivables from disposal of 117 1 38,914,018,545

financial assets

32 Rece:vaples from d{VJdeng’ and 1172 8,256,589, 039
interest income of financial assets

321 Accr‘uafs for Iundue dividend 117 4 8,256,589,039
and interest income

Receivables from senices provided

by the Company

5. Other receivables 122 9,418,183,190

Provision for impairment of

119 62,921,080,378

225,243,355,119

224,634,599,519
50,189,300,073
10,189,300,073
40,000, 000,000

111,247,000,000
56,306,634,983
38,914,018,545

17,392,616,438

17,392,616,438

62,473,718,735
9,491,074,055
(65,073,128,327)

608,755,600
28,455,704
560,299,896

20,000,000

148,119,490,839

130,000,000,000
130,000,000,000
130,000, 000,000
10,429,798,267
4,219,863,590
6,618,992, 700
(2,399, 129,110)
6,209,934,677
9,839,813,450
(3,629,878,773)

7,689,692,572
164,954,000
677,203,808

6,847,534,764

B. . 129 5.4 (65,073,128,327)
receivables (*)
1. Other current assets 130 5.5 1,348,853,078
1. Advances 131 67,763,933
Short-term prepaid expenses 133 1,219,589,145
4 Short-term deposits, collaterals and 134 61,500,000
pledges
NON-CURRENT ASSETS (200 =
B. 210 + 220 + 230 + 240 + 250 - 260) 200 147,208,742,101
l. Long-term financial assets 210 130,000,000,000
2 Long-term investments 212 130,000,000,000
2.1.  HTM investments 212.1 5.2 130, 000,000,000
1. Fixed assets 220 9,677,316,492
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 56 3,820,931,815
- Cost 222 6,618,992, 700
- Accumulated depreciation 223a (2,798,060,885)
3. Intangible fixed assets 227 5.7 5,856,384,677
- Cost 228 9,839,813,450
- Accumulated depreciation 229a (3,983,428,773)
1. Investment properties 230 -
V. Construction in progress 240 -
V. Other long-term assets 250 5.5 7,531,425,609
" Long-term deposits, collaterals and 251 164.954.000
pledges
2: Long-term prepaid expenses 252 518,936,845
4 Payment for Settlement Assistance 254 6,847 534,764
Fund
Vi Provision for impairment of long- 260 )
term assets
TOTAL ASSETS (270 = 100 + 200) 270 348,691,191,164

373,362,845,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

Form B01a-CTCK

4.1.
4.2.

INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Opening balance
VND

16,556,337,285
16,556,337,285
380,419,316
5,020,572,291
994,683,456
10,160,662,222

356,806,508,673
356,806,508,673
465,958,850,000
451,333,000,000
451,333,000, 000

14,625, 850,000

1,813,981,917

1,813,981,917

(112,780,305,161)
(118,957,305,161)
6,177,000,000

As at 301" June 2025

Closing balance
RESOURCES Code Note VND
LIABILITIES 300 11,582,509,485
Current liabilities 310 11,582,509,485
Short-term payables to suppliers 320 5.8 379,209,202
Taxation and Statutory obligations 322 5.9 320,902,981
Payables to employees 323 718,268,254
Other short-term payables 329 510 10,164,129,048
Non-current liabilities 340 -
OWNERS' EQUITY (400 = 410 + 420) 400 337,108,681,679
Owners' equity 410 5.11 337,108,681,679
Share capital 411 465,958,850,000
Capital contribution 411.1 451,333,000,000
a. Ordinary shares 411.1a 451,333,000,000
Share premium 411.2 14,625,850,000
Charter capital supplementary 414 1,813,981,917
reserve
Egsnmal and operational risk reserve 415 1,813,981,917
Undistributed Earnings 417 (132,478,132, 155)
Realized profit 417.1 (112,700,132, 155)
Unrealized profit 417.2 (19,778,000,000)
Other resources and funds 430 ~
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' 440 348,691,191,164

EQUITY (440 = 300 + 400)

373,362,845,958

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

Form B01a-CTCK

3.1.

3.2

4.1.

OFF-STATEMENT OF INTERM FINANCIAL POSITION ITEM

ASSETS

ASSETS OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSETS MANAGED UNDER
AGREEMENTS

Foreign currencies

-USD

Outstanding shares (Unit)

Financial assets listed/registered for
trading at VSD of the Company
Financial assets which have not been
deposited at VSD of the Company
ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER
AGREEMENT WITH INVESTORS
Financial assets listed/registered for
trading at VSD of investors
Unrestricted financial assets
Blocked financial assets

Financial assets awaiting for
settlerment

Non-traded financial assets deposited
at VSD of investors

Unrestricted and non-traded financial
assets deposited at VSD

Investors' deposits

Investors' deposits for securities
trading activities managed by the
Company

Securities transaction clearing and
settlement deposits

Clearing and settlement deposits for
securities transactions of domestic
investors

Clearing and settlement deposits for
securities transactions of foreign
investors

Payables to investors - investors
deposits for securities trading
activities managed by the Company
Payables to domestic investors for
securities trading activities managed
by the Company

Preparer/Chief Accountant
VU HUYEN TRAM

Code

005

006
008

012

021

021.1
021.4

021.5

022

022.1
026

027

029

029.1

029.2

031

031.1

Note

6.1

6.2
6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VND
69,50 82,71
45,133,300 45,133,300

31,900,000,000

24,225,000,000

929,835,920,000

920,902, 300,000
8,770,000

8,924,850, 000
256,820,000

256,820,000
683,564,954

257,438,675

426,126,279

425,828,972

297,307

683,564,954

31,900,000,000

24,225,000,000

843,664,230,000

843,043,370,000
8,770,000

612,090,000
7,093,710,000

7,093,710,000
22,501,852,364

4,512,039,628

17,989,812, 736

17,989,812,736

22,501,852,364

22,501,852,364

DUONG QUANG TRUNG
Hanoi, Vietnam
14" August 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

Form B02a-CTCK

05,19

1.2.

1.3,
1.4,

1.5.

1.6.
1.7

2.1

2.2,
2.3.
2.4
2.5.

3.1.

3.2,

4.1,

VI.

VII.
VIIL.
8.1.
8.2.

INTERIM STATEMENT OF INCOME
for the six months period ended 30" June 2025

ITEMS

. OPERATING INCOME

Gain from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Gain from disposal of financial assets
at FVTPL

Gain from revaluation of financial
assets at FVTPL

Gain from held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments

Gain from loans and receivables
Revenue from brokerage senices
Revenue from securities investment
advisory senvices

Rewvenue from securities custodian
senices

Rewvenue from other operating activities
Total operating revenue

. OPERATING EXPENSES

Loss from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Loss from revaluation of financial
assets at FVTPL

Expenses for proprietary trading
Expenses for brokerage senices
Expenses for securities custodian
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses
FINANCE INCOME

Dividend from investment in
subsidiaries, associates and interest
income from demand deposits

Other investment income

Total finance income

. FINANCE EXPENSES

Realized and unrealized loss from
changes in foreign exchange rates
Total finance expenses

. SALES EXPENSES

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSSES)
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other income

Other expenses

Total other operating profit/(losses)

Code

01

01.1

01.2

02

03
06

08

09

11
20

21

21.2

26
27
30
32
40

42

44
50

51

60
61

62
70

71
72

Note

7.1

7.2

7.2
7.3

7.3

7.3
7.3

7.1

7.4
7.4
7.4
7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Current period

VND

Prior period
VND

6,506,712,325

1,003,946,213
150,000,000

184,250,213

455,664,641
8,300,573,392

19,778,000,000

19,778,000,000

1,460,776,718
169,445,383
354,551,654
21,762,773,755

592,217,475

592,217,475

18,794
18,794

5,764,448,139
(18,634,449,821)
2,043,802

836,302,179
(834,258,377)

18,528,000,000
7,885,000,000
10,643,000,000

7,778,630,132

183,235,366
2,127,746,198

212,556,126

1,892,975,268
30,723,143,090

85,444,443
1,964,104,756
238,851,853
55,547,208
2,343,948,260

451,191,496

981,054,794
1,432,246,290

5,142,907,528
24,668,533,592
6,922,319

56,586,944
(49,664,625)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION

Form B02a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

INTERIM STATEMENT OF INCOME (continued)
for the six months period ended 30" June 2025

ITEMS Code
IX. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 90
9.1. Realized profit/(losses) 91
9.2. Unrealized profit/(losses) 92
X. CORPORATE INCOME TAX 100
10.1. Current corporate income tax expense 100.1
Xl. PROFIT AFTER TAX 200
Xil NET INCOME APPROPIATED TO 500
" ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS
12.1. Eamings per share (VND/share) 501

12.2. Diluted earnings per share (VND/share) 502

Preparer/Chief Accountant
VU HUYEN TRAM

Note

7.9

7.10

Current period Prior period

VND VND
309,291,802 13,975,540,967
(19,778,000,000) 10,643,328,000
229,118,796 2,248,144,066
229,118,796 2,248,144,066

(19,697,826,994) 22,370,724,901

(436) 496
(171) 235

b

UTEAY

ChiefExetutive Officer
DUONG QUANG TRUNG
Hanoi, Vietnam

14 August 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements 10
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

Form B03a-CTCK

INTERIM STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the six months period ended 30th June 2025

(Indirect method)

ITEMS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

(Losses)/Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

- Depreciation and amortisation of fixed
assets and investment properties

- (Gains)/losses from investing activities
- Accrued interest income

Increase in non-monetary expenses
- Loss from revaluation of financial assets
at FVTPL and loss for revaluation of
covered warrants payables

Decrease in non-monetary income

- Gain from revaluation of financial assets
at FVTPL and gain from revaluation of
covered warrants payables

Operating profit before changesin
working

- Increase (decrease) in financial assets
at FVTPL

- Increase (decrease) in loans

- Increase (decrease) in receivables from
disposal of financial assets

- Increase (decrease) receivables and
accrued dividends and interest on

- Increase (decrease) in receivables from
senices provided by the Company

- Increase (decrease) in other receivables
- Increase (decrease) in other assets

- Increase (decrease) in prepaid expenses
- Current income tax paid

- Increase (decrease) in trade payables
- Increase (decrease) in welfare benefits
- Increase (decrease) in statutory
obligations (excluding CIT paid)

- Increase (decrease) in payables to

- Increase (decrease) in other payables
and covered warrants payables

- Other payments for operating activities
Net cash flows used in operating
activities

Code

01
02

03

07
08
10

11

18

19

30

31
33
35

36

37

39
40
42
43
45
46

47
48
50

52
60

Current period
VND

Prior period
VND

(19,468,708,198)
(1,623,297,340)

752,481,775

(592,217,475)
(1,783,561,640)
19,778,000,000

19,778,000,000

4,760,341,150

19,778,000,000

(9,136,027,399)

(447,361,643)

72,890,865
(80,808,229)
(501,022,286)
(3,927,441,835)
(1,210,114)

(1,001,346,270)
(276,415,202)
281,083,263

3,446,335,612

24,618,868,967
(851,390,381)

763,763,275

(1,431,918,290)
(183,235,366)

(10,643,000,000)

(10,643,000,000)

(17,687,036,103)

53,945,000,000
211,981,134
(61,830,000,000)

(8,759,684,926)

(884,624,655)

(34,538,120)
102,005,040
(420,596,137)

(51,638,511)
48,800,000

(239,014,421)
200,874,493
44,400,000
(20,000,000)
(4,562,557,517)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B03a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

INTERIM STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
for the six months period ended 30" June 2025

(Indirect method)
Current period Prior period

ITEMS Code Note VND VND

I CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

*  ACTIVITIES

5 Dl\ndends and mt_erest from long-term 65 592,217 475 1.431,918,290
investments received
Net‘ c?.sh flow from/(used in) investing 70 592,217,475 1,431,918,290
activities

I CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

" ACTIVITIES

Net cash flow from financing activities 80 - iy

IV. NET DECREASE IN CASH DURING THE 90 4,038,5563,087 (3,130,639,227)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

V. THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 101 5.1 50,189,300,073 49,894,191,944
- Cash 101.1 10,189,300,073 4,894,191,944
- Cash equivalents 101.2 40,000,000,000 45,000,000,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

VI. THE END OF THE PERIOD 103 5.1 54,227,853,160 46,763,552,717
- Cash 103.1 50,227,853,160 1,763,552,717
- Cash equivalents 103.2 4,000,000,000 45,000,000,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

Form B03a-CTCK

CASH FLOWS FROM BROKERAGE AND TRUST ACTIVITIES OF CUSTOMERS
for the six months period ended 30% June 2025

Current period

Prior period

ITEMS Code Note VND VND

| CASH FLOWS FROM BROKERAGE AND

" TRUST

" Cash _rgcelpts from disposal of brokerage 01 257,240,444,200 724,935,289,070
securities of customers

0 Cash-p.ayments for acquisition of brokerage 02 (290,607,710,520)  (571,147,487,600)
securities of customers

3 Cash rec_:elpts for settlement of securities 07 305,987,613,624 298 680,136,706
transactions of customers

4 Cash payment for securities transactions of 08 (294,438,634,714)  (458,392,498,652)
customers

5. Cash receipt from securities issuers 14 581,090,000 7,121,144,715

6. Cash payment to securities issuers 15 (581,090,000) (7,121,144,715)
Net _(decrease)/mcrease in cash 20 (21,818, 287,410) (5,924,559,576)
during the year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF

L 22,501,852,364 14,935,303,257

L CUSTOMERS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE <0 é

1. Cash at banks at the beginning of the period: 31 22,501,852,364 14,935,303,257

p, - Investors’ deposits managed by the 32 4,512,039,628 2,420,550,783
Company for securities trading activities

g, "= IR e e Al EpORIES b 33 17,989,812,736 12,514,752,474
securities trading activities
CASH FLOWS FRONM FINANCING

. 683,564,954 9,010,743,681

o ACTIVITIES

1. Cash at banks at the end of the period: 31 683,564,954 9,010,743,681

gy, “ ISR P IERHOgE [l 32 257,438,675 1,248,763,410
Company for securities trading activities

3 - Investors' synthesizing deposits for 34 6.2 426,126,279 7.761.980,271

securities trading activities

Preparer/Chiief Accountant
VU HUYEN TRAM

ef-EXecutive Officer
DUONG QUANG TRUNG
Hanoi, Vietnam

141" August 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements 13
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the six months period ended 30" June 2025

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying interim financial

statements.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1. Structure of ownership
Viet Nam Financial Investment Securities Corporation was established under Business Registration
Certificate No. 0102614143, initially issued on 115t January 2008, and amended for the 7! time on 131
December 2024, by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment. The Company operates in the
securities business under License No. 88/UBCK-GPHBKD dated 11t January 2008, along with
subsequent amended licenses issued by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam.
Head Office: 1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District,
Hanoi Capital.
The charter capital according to the Company's business registration certificate is VND
451,333,000,000, the actual contributed charter capital as at 30 June 2025 is VND 451,333,000,000;
equivalent to 45.133.300 shares, with a par value of VND 10.000/share..
The total number of employees of the Company as at 301 June 2025 is 23 people (as at 315 December
2024 was 20 people).

1.2, Business area
The company operates in the main business areas of securities brokerage and related financial
services.

1:3: Business activities
During the period, the Company's main business lines were: Commodity and securities contract
brokerage (Details: Securities brokerage); Financial service support activities not elsewhere classified
(Details: Securities investment consulting; Securities trading).

1.4. Capital size
As at 30" June 2025, the Company's total charter capital is VND 451,333,000,000 (In words: Four
hundred fifty-one billion, three hundred thirty-three million dong)..

1.5. Normal production and business cycle

The Company’s normal production and business cycle is carried out for a time period of 12 months.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

The Company’s structure

Affiliated units without legal person status and with dependent accounting

Name Place of establishment and operation

8th Floor, Tower B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem Ward,
Hanoi Capital

Ha Thanh Branch 4th Floor, Ha Thanh Plaza, 102 Thai Thinh, Dong Da Ward, Hanoi Capital

Hanoi Branch

Disclosure of information comparability in the interim financial statements

The figures presented in the interim financial statements for the six months period ended 30" June
2025 are comparable with the corresponding figures of the prior period.

Characteristics of the business activities in the period which have impact on the interim
financial statements

As at 30" June 2025, the accumulated loss on the Company's statement of financial position amounted
to VND 132,478,132,155, and the Company's operations remained at a minimal level. During the first
six months of 2025, the Company planned to increase its charter capital in accordance with Resolution
No. 01/2025/NQ/BDHBCB-VISC dated 10" April 2025 of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,
with the aim of supplementing capital for the activities of "Margin lending for securities trading" and
"Proprietary trading", restructuring capital, and ensuring compliance with capital adequacy ratios as
required for securities companies. However, as of the date of this Report, due to unfavorable market
conditions, the Company's management has not yet completed the share offering. The financial
statements for the six months accounting period ending 30% June 2025, have still been prepared on
the basis of the going concern assumption.

Pursuant to Decision No. 38/QD-SGDVN dated 27" June 2025 of the Vietnam Stock Exchange, the
Company is having all securities trading activities suspended from 15t July 2025 to 31! August 2025..

Restrictions on borrowing, Lending and investment

Borrowing restrictions

The Company is required to comply with Article 26 under Circular No. 121/2020/TT-BTC dated 31
December 2020 promulgated by the Ministry of Finance providing guidance operation of securities
companies and other applicable regulations on borrowing restrictions:

1. The total liabilities of a securities company must not exceed 05 times its equity capital. The value
of total liabilities under this provision is exclusive of the following amounts:

a. Deposits of clients for securities trading;

b. Reward and welfare fund;

c. Provision for job loss allowances;

d. Provision for damage compensations for investors.

2. Short-term liabilities of a securities company must not exceed its short-term assets.

3. A securities company offering bonds shall comply with Article 31 of the Law on Securities, Decree
detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities, the law on issuing
corporate bonds and must ensure to comply with the rate specified in Clauses 1 and 2 of this
Article,
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Lending restrictions

The Company is required to comply with Article 26 under Circular No. 121/2020/TT-BTC dated 31
December 2020 promulgated by the Ministry of Finance providing guidance operation of securities
companies and other applicable regulations on lending restrictions:

1.

Except for the case specified in Clause 1, Article 86 of the Law on Securities, a securities company
shall not allowed to lend money or securities in any form.

A securities company shall not be allowed to use money or assets of the company or clients to
secure payment obligations to a third party.

A securities company may not provide loans in any form to its owner, major shareholders;
members of the Control Board, Board of Directors, Members' Council or Directorate; chief
accountant and other managerial post holders appointed by its Board of Directors and the affiliated
persons of the above-mentioned subjects.

A securities company, which has been allowed to perform margin transactions according to the
law provisions, shall be allowed to lend clients money to buy securities in the form of margin trading
under the guidance of the Ministry of Finance.

A securities company shall be allowed to provide loans for securities to correct transaction errors,
or to provide loans to perform the exchange transactions of exchange traded fund certificates or
in other forms in accordance with relevant laws.

Investment restrictions

The Company is required to comply with Article 28 under Circular No. 121/2020/TT-BTC dated 31
December 2020 promulgated by the Ministry of Finance providing guidance operation of securities
companies and other applicable regulations on investment restrictions. The current applicable
practices on investment restrictions are as follows:

1.

Securities company is not allowed to invest, contribute capital to invest in real-estate assets
except for the purpose of use for head office, branches, and transaction offices directly serving
professional business activities of the securities company.

Securities company may invest in real-estate investment as prescribed in Clause 1 and fixed
assets on the principle that the carrying value of the fixed assets and real-estate investment
should not exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total value of assets of the securities company.
Securities company is not allowed to use more than seventy percent (70%) of its owners equity
to invest in corporate bonds. Securities company, licensed to engage in self-trading activity, is
allowed to trade listed bonds in accordance with relevant regulation on trading bonds
repurchases.

4. Securities company must not by itself, or authorize another organization or individuals to:

a.

Invest in shares or contribute capital to companies that owned more than fifty percent (50%) of
the charter capital of the securities company, except for purchasing of odd lots shares as the
request of customers;

Make joint investment with an affiliated person of five percent (5%) or more in the charter capital
of another securities company;

Invest more than twenty percent (20%) in the total currently circulating shares or fund certificates
of a listing organization;

Invest more than fifteen percent (15%) in the total currently circulating shares or fund certificates
of an unlisted organization, this provision shall not apply to member fund, ETF fund or open-end
fund certificates;

Invest or contribute capital of more than ten percent (10%) in the total paid-up capital of a limited
liability company or of a business project;
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.1,

2.2,

f. Invest more than fifteen percent (15%) of its owners' equity in a single organization or of a
business project, or

g. Invest more than seventy percent (70%) of its total owners' equity in shares, capital contribution
and a business project, specifically invest more than twenty percent (20%) of its total owners'
equity in unlisted shares, capital contribution and a business project.

Securities company is allowed to establish or purchase an asset management company as a
subsidiary. In that case, securities company is not required to follow points ¢, d, and e of Clause 4
above.

ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEMS
Adoption of accounting standards and systems

The accompanying financial statements are presented in Vietnamese Dong (VND), under the historical
cost principle and in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Accounting Regime for
Vietnamese Securities Companies, accounting regulations and instructions applicable to securities
companies issued under Circular No. 210/2014/TT-BTC dated. 30 December 2014 and Circular No.
334/2016/TT-BTC dated 27" December 2016 amending, supplementing and replacing Appendix 02
and 04 of Circular No. 210/2014/TT-BTC dated 30t December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance
providing accounting instructions applicable to securities companies, Circular No. 23/2018/TT-BTC
dated 12" March 2018 of the Ministry of Finance providing accounting instructions for covered
warrants for securities companies that are issuing organizations and relevant legal regulations. relating
to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

Declaration of compliance of accounting standards and system

The accounting of securities companies is carried out in compliance with the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting Regime for Securities Companies, and the accounting
regulations and guidelines applicable to securities companies, as promulgated under Circular No.
210/2014/TT-BTC dated 30/12/2014 and Circular No. 334/2016/TT-BTC, which amends,
supplements, and replaces Appendices 02 and 04 of Circular No. 210/2014/TT-BTC dated 30/12/2014
of the Ministry of Finance, providing accounting guidance for securities companies. It also adheres to
Circular No. 23/2018/TT-BTC dated 12/03/2018 of the Ministry of Finance, which provides guidance
on accounting for covered warrants applicable to securities companies acting as issuers, as well as
the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and other relevant legal regulations. The financial statements
have been prepared to present fairly and accurately the financial position, operating results, statement
of changes in equity, and cash flows of the enterprise.

The selection of figures and information to be disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements is

carried out based on the materiality principle as stipulated in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 21,
"Presentation of Financial Statements".
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

3.1.

3.2.

Going concern assumption

There have been no events that cast significant doubt on its ability to continue as a going concern.
The company neither intends nor is forced to cease operations, or significantly scale back its
operations.

Accounting form

The Company's registered applicable accounting form is General Journal.
Financial year

The Company'’s financial year begins on 018t January and ends on 31%" December.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting requires The
Executive Managemant to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial year (reporting
period). Although these accounting estimates are based on The Executive Managemant's best
knowledge, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions arising in currencies other than the Company's accounting currency (USD) are

accounted for at the actual exchange rate on the date of the transaction according to the following

principles:

e Operations giving rise to receivables are accounted for at the buying exchange rate of the
commercial bank where the Company appoints customers to pay,

o Operations giving rise to payables are accounted for at the selling exchange rate of the commercial
bank where the Company plans to transact; and

e For purchases of assets or expenses to be paid immediately in foreign currency (not using accounts
payable): purchasing foreign exchange rate of commercial banks where the company makes the
payment.

Foreign exchange rate used to reassess the balance of monetary assets and liabilities denominated

in foreign currencies at the statement of financial position date are determined according to the

following principles:

e For monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are classified as other assets: purchasing
foreign exchange rate of the Bank company regularly traded; and

e For monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are classified as liabilities: selling foreign
exchange rate of Bank company regularly traded.

All actual exchange rate differences arising during the year and differences due to reassessment of

foreign currency balances at the end of the period are accounted for in the results of operations.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.3.

3.4.

Recorded value of financial assets
Original cost

The original cost of a financial asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid, disbursed, or
payable for the financial asset at the time of initial recognition. Depending on the type of financial asset,
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset may or may not be
included in its original cost.

Fair value/market value

Fair value or market value of a financial asset is the value of a financial asset that could be exchanged
voluntarily between knowledgeable parties in an arm's length exchange.

Fair/market value of securities is determined according to the method presented in Note 3.7.
Allocation value

The amortized cost of a financial asset (classified as a debt instrument) is determined as the initial
recognition amount of the financial asset minus (=) principal repayments, plus (+) or minus (=) the
cumulative amortization calculated using the effective interest rate method of the difference between
the initial recognition amount and the maturity value, and minus (=) any impairment allowances or
uncollectible amounts (if applicable).

For financial statement presentation purposes, impairment allowances or uncollectible amounts are
disclosed under the item “Provision for impairment of financial assets and collateralized assets” in the
statement of financial position.

Book value

The book value of a financial asset is the amount at which the asset is recognized in the statement of
financial position. Depending on the type of financial asset, the carrying value may represent fair value
(for FVTPL and AFS financial assets) or amortized cost (for HTM investments and loans).

Cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: cash on hand, cash at banks, cash in transit, highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three (03) months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, clearing deposits, and securities transaction payments of the Securities Company
(SC) at the reporting time. Deposit for clearing and payment of securities.

Record capital in cash
Securities company operating deposits
Cash is a consolidated indicator that reflects the total amount of funds available to the enterprise at

the reporting date. It includes cash on hand held by the enterprise, demand deposits at banks, and
clearing and settlement deposits for securities transactions (applicable to securities companies).
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.5.

These are highly liquid assets, readily convertible to cash, and subject to minimal risk of value
fluctuation.

nvestor deposits for securities trading, deposits from other issuing organizations, and investor deposits
for clearing and settlement of securities transactions are presented as off-balance sheet items.

Investor deposits
Investor deposits refer to funds deposited by clients for securities trading under the management
method of the securities company.

Deposits from Underwritten Securities Sales

Deposits from underwritten securities sales represent funds received from the sale of securities
underwritten by the securities company at a designated commercial bank, where the company acts as
the lead or co-underwriter. This includes proceeds collected from securities selling agents. These
deposits will be settled upon completion of the underwriting process with the issuing organization or
the lead underwriter,

Deposits for Securities Transaction Clearing and Settlement

Deposits for securities transaction clearing and settlement refer to funds held in readiness for clearing
and settlement activities between the securities company and its clients on T+1.5, as required by the
Securities Depository Center, to facilitate the net settlement of securities purchases and sales based
on the finalized clearing results.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets recognized at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets recognized at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that satisfy either of
the following conditions:
a) ltis classified as held for trading. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
e |t is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term;
e There is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
e ltis a derivative (except derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or effective hedging
instrument).
b) Upon initial recognition, a financial asset will be presented more reasonably if classified at fair
value through profit or loss as it meets one of the following criterias:
e The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the asset or recognising gains or losses on a different basis;
e The assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed, and their performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's risk management policy
or investment strategy.

These financial assets often include: stocks, bonds, monetary instruments, derivatives (for hedging
purposes)..

Financial assets are reclassified out of FVTPL in cases where the financial asset is a loan or receivable
and is intended to be held for a specified period in the future or until maturity, or where the financial

asset is a deposit that qualifies for classification under cash and cash equivalents.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

When a securities company sells financial assets that are not classified as FVTPL, it must reclassify
the relevant financial assets from other categories into the FVTPL group. Any fair value revaluation
differences previously recorded under “Fair Value Revaluation Differences” shall be recognized as

revenue or expense on the date of reclassification upon sale of the financial assets.

Non-derivative financial assets initially not required to be classified as FVTPL may be reclassified into
the loans and receivables category under certain specific circumstances, or into the cash and cash
equivalents category if they meet the criteria for such classification. Any gains or losses previously
recognized from fair value revaluation of FVTPL assets prior to reclassification shall not be reversed.

FVTPL financial assets that are instruments reaching maturity must be reclassified as receivables

and provisioned as doubtful debts(if any).

Principle of revaluation of financial assets recorded through profit/loss (FVTPL)

The value of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is initially recognized
at the actual purchase price (historical cost). Any transaction costs incurred in acquiring FVTPL

financial assets are immediately recognized as expenses in the income statement.

After initial recognition, FVTPL financial assets are measured at market value. All gains or losses
arising from changes in the value of these financial assets are classified under the fair value through

profit or loss category and are recognized in the income statement.

At the end of each accounting period, financial assets classified as FVTPL in the securities company's
financial asset portfolio must be revalued at market price or fair value (if market price is unavailable).

At the first revaluation period, the fair value revaluation of FVTPL financial assets in the securities
company's portfolio is reflected in Account 1212 “Revaluation Differences” as the difference between
the revalued fair value or market price and the original purchase price of the FVTPL financial assets.

In the presentation of the financial position statement, the item “Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” is shown on a net basis. This item is calculated as follows: FVTPL Financial Assets =
Debit balance of Account 1211 “Purchase Price” + Debit/Credit balance of Account 1212 “Revaluation

Differences”.

In the notes to the financial statements, FVTPL financial assets in the securities company's portfolio
must be presented under three indicators: purchase value, revaluation value, and net value (purchase

value + revaluation value), categorized by type of FVTPL financial asset.

Revaluation gains or losses of FVTPL financial assets in the securities company's portfolio are
recognized on a non-offsetting basis and presented in the income statement under two separate

indicators:

e Revaluation losses of FVTPL financial assets are reflected under “Losses and transaction
costs from purchasing financial assets — proprietary trading activities,” specifically

“Revaluation losses of FVTPL financial assets”.

e Revaluation gains of FVTPL financial assets are reflected under “Income,” specifically

"Revaluation gains - FVTPL financial assets”.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form BOSa-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.6.

3.7,

Revaluation gains or losses of FVTPL financial assets in the securities company's portfolio determine
the unrealized profit or loss for the accounting period.

Held-to-maturity investments (HTM)

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with determinable payments and fixed
maturity that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than:

a. Those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

b. Those that the entity designates as available-for-sale; and

c. Those meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are recognized initially at cost (acquisition cost of the assets plus (+)
transaction costs which are directly attributable to the investments such as brokerage fee, trading fee,
issuance agency fee and banking transaction fee). After initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial
investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR").

Amortized cost of HTM financial investments is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at initial recognition minus (-) principal repayments, plus (+) or minus (-) the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus (-) any reduction for impairment or irrecoverability (if any).

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the cost allocation on interest income or
interest expense in the year of a financial asset or a group of HTM investments.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liabilities.

HTM investments are subject to an assessment of impairment at the separate financial statement date.
Provision is made for an HTM investment when there is any objective evidence that the investment is
irrecoverable or there is uncertainty of recoverability, resulting from one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the investment and that event have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the investment that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
a drop in the fair value/market value of the debt, indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data
indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. When there is any evidence of impairment,
provision for an HTM investment is determined as the negative difference between its fair value and
amortized cost at the assessment date. Any increase/decrease in the balance of provision is
recognized in the separate income statement under "Provision expenses for diminution in value and
impairment of financial assets and doubtful receivables and borrowing costs of loans".

Fair value/market value of financial assets
Fair value/market value of the securities is determined as follows:

e For securities listed on Hanoi Stock Exchange and Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange, their market
prices are their closing prices on the trading day preceding the date of setting up the revaluation;
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e For unlisted securities registered for trading on the Unlisted Public Company Market ("UPCOM"),
their market prices are their closing prices on the trading day preceding the date of setting up the

revaluation;

o For delisted securities and suspended trading securities from the sixth day afterward, their prices

are the book value at the latest financial report date; and.

e For unlisted and unregistered securities, the valuation is based on the average of actual transaction
prices quoted by three securities companies that have conducted transactions at the closest time to
the valuation date, but not exceeding one month prior to the date of fair value assessment. In cases
where no actual transactions have occurred within that one-month period, the fair value of the
securities is not assessed. For securities that are not listed, due to the inability to determine their

market value, the Company is unable to assess their fair value;

e For securities which do not have reference price from the above sources, the revaluation is
determined based on the financial performance and the book value of securities issuers as at the

assessment date.

Securities whose market value is not determined by the above methods will not be subject to provision.

3.8. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognized when:
e The rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assets or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under

a "pass-through" arrangement; and either:

v" the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or
v the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement; and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that

reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

The continued participation in transferred assets in the form of guarantee will be recognized at smaller
value between the initial carrying value of the assets and the maximum amount that the Company is

required to pay.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

Reclassification of financial assets

Reclassification when selling financial assets other than FVTPL

When selling financial assets other than FVTPL, securities companies are required to reclassify those
financial assets to financial assets at FVTPL. The difference arising from the revaluation of financial
assets AFS which was recognized in "Difference from revaluation of assets at fair value" will be
recoghized as corresponding revenue or expenses at the date of reclassification of financial assets
AFS for selling purpose.

Reclassification due to change in purpose or ability to hold

Securities companies are required to reclassify financial assets to their applicable categories if their
purpose or ability to hold has changed, consequently:
o Non-derivative financial assets at FVTPL or financial assets that are not required to be

classified as financial asset at FVTPL at the initial recognition can be classified as loans and
other receivables or as cash and cash equivalents if the requirements are met. The gains or
losses arising from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL prior to the reclassification are not
allowed to be reversed,;

e Due to changes in purposes or ability to hold, some HTM investments are required to be
reclassified into AFS financial assets and to revaluated at fair value. The difference arising
from revaluation between carrying value and fair value are recognized under "Difference from
revaluation of assets at fair value" in Owners' equity in the separate statement of financial
position.

Receivables
Receivables are initially recorded at cost and subsequently always presented at cost.

Receivables are subject to review for impairment based on their overdue status or estimated loss
arising from undue debts of corporate debtors who have bankruptcy or are under liguidation; or of
individual debtors who are missing, have fled, are prosecuted, detained or tried by law enforcement
bodies, are serving sentences or have deceased. Increases or decreases to the provision balance are
recorded as "Provision expenses for diminution in value and impairment of financial assets and
doubtful debts and borrowing costs of loans" and "Other operating expenses" in the separate income
statement.

The provision for doubtful receivables is made in accordance with current regulations.

For receivables that are not yet due but are considered uncollectible, the Company estimates the
potential loss (up to the value of the debt recorded in the accounting books) to make provision.

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The costs of purchased tangible fixed assets comprise their purchase prices and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use.

The costs of self-constructed or manufactured assets are the actual construction or manufacturing
cost plus installation and test running costs. Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-
line method as follows:
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.12.

3.13.

3.14.

3.15.

Current year Privous year

[vears] [vears]

Machinery and equipment 03-08 03-08
Means of transport 06 -10 06 -10
Management equipment and tools 03-08 03-08

Leasing

A lease is classified as an operating lease when the lessor retains a significant portion of the rewards
and is subject to the risks of ownership of the asset. Operating lease expenses are recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Consideration received or receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease is also recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term..

Intangible assets

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.

The cost of intangible fixed assets comprises all the expenses incurred to obtain this asset put into
use. Costs incurred after the initial recognition are recognized to increase the cost of intangible fixed
assets if these costs certainly increase economic benefits in the future due to using this asset.

When intangible fixed assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated amortisation are removed
from the statement of financial position and any profit or loss resulting from its disposal is included in
the income or expense in the year.

The Company's intangible fixed assets include:

Computer software

The buying expenses of computer software which are not an integral part of related hardware are
capitalized. Initial cost of computer software includes all the expenses paid until the date the software
is put into use. Computer software is amortized in line with the straight-line method from 02 years to
08 years.

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for other
purposes, are carried at cost. Cost includes costs that are necessary to form the assets in accordance
with the Company's accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are expenses which have already been paid but relate to results of operations of
multiple accounting periods. Prepaid expenses of the Company include the following expenses:
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.16.

3.17.

Pre-operating expenses

Establishment costs include the costs incurred for the establishment of businesses are amortized to
expense under the straight-line method in 36 months since the company started its operations.

Tools and equipment

Pre-operating expenses include training costs, advertising and promotion before the company started
its operations. These costs are amortized to expense under the straight-line method in 36 months
since the company started its operations.

Repair costs of fixed assets

Repair costs of fixed assets incurred once to have a large value are amortized to expense under the
straight-line method in 36 months.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recognized as the amount of money to be paid in the future
related to the goods and services received. Payable expenses are recognized based on a reasonable
estimate of the payable.

Payables are classified as payable to suppliers, accrued expenses, and other payables according to

the following principles:

e Payables to suppliers reflect the trade payables arising from commercial transactions between the
Company and the seller, which is an independent entity of the Company, including the number of
payables on imports through trustees.

e Accrued expenses reflect the payables for goods and services received from the seller or provided
for the buyer, for which no invoices have yet been received from suppliers. Those payables also
reflect the number of payables to employees on vacation wages, production, and business costs
that must accrue.

o Other payables reflect non-commercial receivables, not related to the purchase and sale
transactions.

Payables from securities trading activities

Payable for securities trading activities

Reflects the payment situation for business operation fees, securities services to the Stock Exchange,
Vietham Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation (VSDC), payable to the Company's securities
issuance agent.

Payable to securities issuer

Reflects the situation of receiving and paying payables to the Securities Issuer for proceeds from the

sale of guaranteed securities made by the Company at the main or secondary securities underwriting
company, including cases where the securities underwriting company sells securities through agents.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.18. Borrowings and finance lease liabilities

Reflects the status of bond issuance and bond repayments; and presents temporary borrowings and
the Company’s debt repayment activities with banks, the Vietham Securities Depository (VSD), the
Settlement Support Fund, or other lending entities in accordance with regulations on borrowing
activities applicable to securities companies.

3.19. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the year when incurred unless they are
capitalised in accordance with Viethamese Accounting Standard No. 16 “Borrowing costs”.
Accordingly, borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
cost of those assets. For specific borrowings for the purpose of construction of fixed assets and
investment properties, borrowing costs are capitalised even when the construction period is under 12
months,

N

3.20. Owners' equity
Contributed capital from shareholders

V Contributed capital from stock issuance is recorded in Charter Capital at par value.

e =

Undistributed profit

Undistributed profit comprises of realised and unrealised undistributed profit.

Unrealised profit during the year is the difference between gain and loss arisen from revaluation of
financial assets at FVTPL or others through profit or loss in the separate income statement, and the

deferred income tax related to the increase in revaluation of FVTPL financial assets and others.

Realised profit during the year is the net difference between total revenue and income, and total
expenses in the separate income statement of the Company, except for gain or loss recognized in

unrealised profit. /I

I..

3.21. Distribution of net profits I
li

Profit after corporate income tax is distributed to shareholders after being approved by the General %

L 1

Meeting of Shareholders and after setting aside funds according to the Company Charter and
regulations of Vietham.

3.22. Revenue and earnings

The Company's revenue includes income from securities trading, revenue from providing securities
brokerage services, securities custody, securities investment consulting and corporate finance consulting.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.23.

Income from securities trading

Income from securities trading is determined based on the difference between the selling price and
the average cost price of the securities.

Revenue from Rendering of Services (including securities brokerage, securities depository,
investment advisory, and auction entrustment)

Service revenue is recognized at the time the transaction occurs, when the economic benefits are
reasonably assured. It is measured at the fair value of the receivable amounts, regardless of whether cash
has been received.

Revenue from services rendered to customers must comply with the business activities specified in the
Company’s Establishment and Operation License. Service revenue is considered earned when the
customer has made payment, accepted payment terms, committed to payment, or when the amount is
deducted from proceeds of securities sales on behalf of the customer.

Specifically, revenue from securities brokerage activities is recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss when the securities transaction is completed.

Revenue from Rendering of Other Services

Revenue from service transactions is recognized when the outcome of the transaction can be reliably

measured. In cases where the service transaction spans multiple periods, revenue is recognized in

the year based on the stage of completion as at the reporting date of the financial statements. The
outcome of a service transaction is considered reliably measurable when all four (4) of the following
conditions are satisfied:

e Revenue can be measured with reasonable certainty. If the contract allows the buyer to return the
services under specific conditions, revenue is only recognized when those conditions no longer
exist and the buyer no longer has the right to return the rendered services;

o |tis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

e The stage of completion at the reporting date of the financial statements can be determined; and

e he costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the service transaction can be measured
reliably.

Interest

Interest is recognized on an accrual basis, are determined on the balance of cash in bank and the
actual interest rate for each period.

Dividends and profits received
Dividends and profit shared are recognized when the Company receive the notice of dividends or profit
from the capital contribution. Dividends which received by shares, only follow up the number of shares

increases, no recognition of the value of shares.

Recognition of losses and transaction costs of financial assets
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Losses on financial assets are recognised on the basis of the smaller difference between the selling

price of the financial asset and the weighted average cost of the financial asset.

Recording transaction costs of purchasing financial assets as actual costs arising from the transaction

of purchasing financial assets.

3.24. Cost of selling securities trading

The Company applies the moving weighted average method to calculate the cost of proprietary

securities.

3.25.  Financial expenses

Financial expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss represent the total financial expenses
incurred during the year, without offsetting against financial income. These include interest expenses

and other financial costs.

3.26. General and administration expenses

General and administration expenses reflect actual expenses incurred during the general
management of the Company, mainly including expenses for labour of management department
salaries; social insurance, health insurance, trade union fees, unemployment insurance for labour;
office equipment expenses; depreciation and amortisation; provision expenses; outside services and

other expenses.
3.27. Corporate income tax

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior year are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to

compute the amount are those that are enacted as at the reporting date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to items
recognized directly to owners' equity, in which case the current income tax is also dealt with in owners'

equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right for
the Company to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the Company intends

to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using for temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax

base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of

the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits willbe available
against which deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized, except where the deferred tax asset in respect of deductible temporary
difference which arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability which at the time of the related

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at the reporting date and reduced toa
certain extent that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income
tax assets to be recovered. Previously unrecognized deferred income tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable

profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized, or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recorded to the separate income statement, except
when it relates to items recognized directly to owners' equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
dealt with in owners' equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority, and the Company

intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
3.28. Financial instruments

Original cost

Financial assets: At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are recognised at cost plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Financial assets
of the Company comprise cash, cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, deposits, financial

investments and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities: At the date of initial recognition financial liabilities are recognised at cost plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities. Financial liabilities
of the Company comprise trade and other payables, accrued expenses, obligations under finance

leases, borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement after initial recognition

Currently, there are no requirements for the subsequent measurement of the financial instruments

after initial recognition.

3.29. Related parties

The parties are considered to be related if that party has the ability to control or significantly influence
the other party in making decisions on financial policies and operations. Parties are considered a
related party of the Company in case that party is able to control the company or to cause material

effects on the financial decisions.

In considering any possible related party relationship, attention is directed more to the substance of

the relationship than to the legal form.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION

Form B09a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. VALUE AND VOLUME OF TRADING DURING THE PERIOD

Volume of trading
during the period

Value of trading
during the period
VND

223,699,915,890
223,699,915,890

5.1.

5.2.

5.21.

Unit

The Company =
Investors 25,612,089
- Shares 25,612,089
25,612,089

223,699,915,890

NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Cash and cash equivalents
Closing balance
VND

Opening balance
VND

20,341,960,340
29,878,196,750

Cash
Cash in banks for securities company operations

Clearing and settlement deposits for securities
transactions

Cash equivalents

7,696,070
4,000,000,000

44,500,594
10,137,111,080

7,688,399
40,000,000,000

54,227,853,160

50,189,300,073

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Closing balance

Opening balance

Unlisted shares

Thu Do Import
Export Trading JSC
Sakura Real estate
JSC

Thang Long Phu
Tho Investment JSC
Listed shares
Thang Long
Investment Group
Joint Stock

Cost
VND

Book value
VND

Cost
VND

Book value
VND

68,820,000,000

3,000,000,000

31,500,000,000

34,320,000,000
26,232,447,374

26,232,447,374

68,820,000,000

3,000,000,000

31,500,000,000

34,320,000,000
22,649,000,000

22,649,000,000

68,820,000,000

3,000,000,000

31,500,000,000

34,320,000,000
26,232,447,374

26,232,447,374

68,820,000,000

3,000,000,000

31,500,000,000

34,320,000,000
42,427,000,000

42,427,000,000

95,052,447,374

91,469,000,000

95,052,447,374

111,247,000,000
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION

Form B09a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi Capital
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5.2.2.

HTM investments

Closing balance

Opening balance

Fair value

Cost Fair value
VND VND

Cost
VND
Bonds 130,000,000,000
HDE Distribution
JSC (i) ~45,000,000,000
Thu Do Import
Export Trading iy 000,000,000
Ha Thanh

Production and
Investment Trading
JSC (iii)

45,000,000,000

130,000,000,000
45,000,000,000

40,000,000,000

45,000,000,000

130,000,000,000 130,000,000,000
45,000,000,000  45,000,000,000

40,000,000,000  40,000,000,000

45,000,000,000  45,000,000,000

130,000,000,000

130,000,000,000

130,000,000,000 130,000,000,000

(i) Bond code HDECH23225001, bond term from 6t March 2023 to 6 March 2027, interest rate
9%/year, no collateral, interest paid periodically once a year from the date of issuance.

(i) Bond code HTMCH23225001, bond term from 9% March 2023 to 9" March 2027, interest rate
9%lyear, no collateral, interest paid periodically once a year from the date of issuance.

(i) Bond code TDECH23225001, bond term from 9 March 2023 to 9" March 2027, interest rate
9%/year, no collateral, interest paid periodically once a year from the date of issuance.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Form B09a-CTCK

5.3.

Receivables

Receivables from disposal of financial assets
Ms. Doan Thi Cat Linh (i)

Mr. Nguyen Quoc Khanh (ii)

Ms. Nguyen Thi Nhu Hoa

Receivables and accruals from dividends and
interest income from financial assets

Bond interest receivable

Loan interest - Kim Lan Finance Investment JSC
Receivables from services provided by the
Company

Loc Xuan Gold Joint Stock Company - business
cooperation contract (iii)

Receivables from individual business cooperation
contracts (iv)

Kim Lan Finance Investment JSC

Advance payment for overdue sales

Others

Other receivables

Loc Xuan Gold Joint Stock Company - business
cooperation contract interest (jii)

Receivable from individuals for business cooperation
contract interest (iv)

Others

Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

38,914,018,545
19,300,000,000
16,255,000,000

3,359,018,545

8,256,589,039

6,506,712,325
1,749,876,714

62,921,080,378
45,299,876,762

10,304,130,875

6,493,372,741
823,700,000

9,418,183,190
2,503,689,290

2,011,212,883
4,903,281,017

38,914,018,545
19,300,000,000
16,255,000,000

3,359,018,545

17,392,616,438

15,642,739,724
1,749,876,714

62,473,718,735
45,299,876,762

10,304,130,875

6,046,011,098
823,700,000

9,491,074,055
2,503,689,290

2,011,212,883
4,976,171,882

(i)

(iv)

119,5609,871,152 128,271,427,773

Share Transfer Agreement No. 68/2024/HDCNCP/VISC-CN transfer of 3,000,000 shares of Tig
Holdings Joint Stock Company to Ms. Boan Thi Cat Linh. Transfer price: VND 10,100 per share.
Total transfer value: VND 30,300,000,000. Accordingly, Ms. Doan Thj Cat Linh shall fully settle
the transfer payment to the company by 26/04/2024, as per the working minutes agreed upon by
both parties. The payment is secured by 1,749,755 TIG shares held at VISC by the guarantor on
behalf of Ms. Doan Thi Cat Linh.

Share Transfer Agreement No. 69/2024/HDCNCP/VISC-CN dated 27/12/2024 regarding the
transfer of 1,800,000 shares of Ha Thanh Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company to Mr.
Nguyen Quoc Khanh. Transfer price; VND 10,100 per share. Total transfer value: VND
18,180,000,000. Accordingly, Mr. Nguyen Quoc Khanh shall fully settle the transfer payment to
the company by 27/04/2024, as per the working minutes agreed upon by both parties. The
payment is secured by 1,255,135 TIG shares held at VISC by the guarantor on behalf of Mr.
Nguyen Quoc Khanh.

Trade receivables related to old business cooperation contracts and accrued interest receivables
associated with contracts of Vang Loc Xuan Joint Stock Company. The Company has fully
provisioned 100% for doubtful debts related to these outstanding receivables.

Receivables from individuals related to old business cooperation contracts and accrued interest
receivables associated with these contracts. The Company has fully provisioned 100% for
doubtful debts related to these receivables.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Form B09a-CTCK

5.5.

5.5.1.

5.5.2,

5.6.

Other assets

Other short-term assets

Advances

Short-term prepaid expenses

- Office rental expenses

- Server hosting expenses

- Other expenses

Deposits, collaterals and pledges

Other long-term assets

Deposit for office rent
Short-term prepaid expenses
- Office repair expenses

- Other expenses

Payment for Settlement Assistance Fund

Increases, decreases in tangible fixed assets

Machinery and

Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VND
67,763,933 28,455,704
1,219,589,145 560,299,896
5 239,976,000
633,270,000 -
586,319, 145 320,323,896
61,500,000 20,000,000
1,348,853,078 608,755,600

Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VND
164,954,000 164,954,000
518,936,845 677,203,808

57,372,701 81,683,072
461,564, 144 595,520,736

6,847,534,764

6,847,534,764

7,531,425,609

7,689,692,572

Office

COST

Opening balance
Increase in the period
Decrease in the period

Closing balance

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance
Increase in the period
- Depreciation charged
Decrease in the period

Closing balance

. 5 Total
equipment equipment
VND VND VND
6,405,317,700 213,675,000 6,618,992,700
6,405,317,700 213,675,000 6,618,992,700
2,185,454,110 213,675,000 2,399,129,110
398,931,775 - 398,931,775
398,931,775 - 398,931,775
2,584,385,885 213,675,000 2,798,060,885

NET BOOK VALUE

- Opening balance

4,219,863,590

4,219,863,590

- Closing balance

3,820,931,815

3,820,931,815

Cost of tangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use:

- Opening balance
- Closing balance

112,815,000
112,815,000

213,675,000
213,675,000

326,490,000
326,490,000
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Form B09a-CTCK

5.7.

5.8.

Intangible fixed assets

COST

Opening balance
Increase in the period
Decrease in the period
Closing balance

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance

Increase in the period

- Depreciation charged

Decrease in the period

Closing balance

NET BOOK VALUE

- Opening balance

- Closing balance

Payables to suppliers

Lotte HPT Vietnam High Technology Co., Ltd
Other objects

Computer software

VND

Total
VND

9,839,813,450

9,839,813,450

9,839,813,450

9,839,813,450

3,629,878,773
353,550,000
353,550,000

3,629,878,773
353,550,000
353,550,000

3,983,428,773

3,983,428,773

6,209,934,677

6,209,934,677

5,856,384,677

5,856,384,677

Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VND
265,162,500 265,162,500
114,046,702 115,256,816
379,209,202 380,419,316
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION

Form B09a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5.10.

5.11.

5.11.1.

5:41.2,

5.11.3.

6.1.

Other short-term payables
Closing balance  Opening balance

VND VND

Hanoi Agric_ult.ural Investment and Development 10,055,340,342 10,055, 340,342
Company Limited - Interest payable

Dividends payable 104,625,000 104,625,000

4,163,706 696,880

Other payables

10,164,129,048 10,160,662,222

Owners' equity

Details of owner’s investment capital
Closing balance  Opening balance
VND VND

451,333,000,000 451,333,000,000
451,333,000,000 451,333,000,000

Shareholder equity under 5%

Capital transactions with owners and dividend distribution, profit sharing
Current period Prior period
VND VND

451,333,000,000

Owner’s invested equity -
Capital contribution at the beginning of the period 451,333,000,000
Contributed capital increased during the period -
Contributed capital decreased during the period -
Capital contribution at the end of the period 451,333,000,000
Dividends and distributed profits =

451,333,000,000

Shares
Closing balance  Opening balance
VND VND
- Number of shares registered for issuance 45,133,300 45,133,300
- Number of shares issued to the public 45,133,300 45,133,300
+ Ordinary shares 45,133,300 45,133,300
+ Preference shares - -
- Number of shares repurchased = -
+ Ordinary shares - -
+ Preference shares - =
- Number of outstanding shares in circulation 45,133,300 45,133,300
45,133,300 45,133,300

+ Ordinary shares

+ Preference shares

NOTES TO THE PRESENTED SECTIONS ON THE OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ITEMS

Foreign currencies

US Dollar (USD)

Closing balance

Opening balance

69,50

82,71

69,50

82,71
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Form B09a-CTCK

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7,

6.8.

Outstanding shéres
Closing balance

Opening balance

Unit Unit
Outstanding shares 45,133,300 45,133,300
45,133,300 45,133,300

Financial assets listed/registered for trading at VSD of the Company

Closing balance
VND

Opening balance
VND

Freely transferable financial assets 31,900,000,000

31,900,000,000

31,900,000,000

31,900,000,000

Financial assets which have not been deposited at VSD of the Company
Closing balance
VND

Opening balance
VND

Financial assets which have not been

deposited at VSD of the Company 200000

24,225,000,000

24,225,000,000

24,225,000,000

Financial assets listed/registered for trading at VSD of investors
Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VND
Unrestricted financial assets 920,902,300,000 843,043,370,000
Blocked financial assets 8,770,000 8,770,000
Financial assets awaiting for settlement 8,924,850,000 612,090,000

929,835,920,000

843,664,230,000

Non-traded financial assets deposited at VSD of investors
Closing balance
VND

Opening balance
VND

Freely transferable financial assets 256,820,000

7,093,710,000

256,820,000

7,093,710,000

Investors' deposits
Closing balance

Opening balance
VND

4,512,039,628

17,989,812,736

VND
Investors' deposits for securities trading activities 057,438,675
managed by the Company
Secunltles transaction clearing and settlement 426,126 279
deposits
683,564,954

22,501,852,364

Payables to investors - investors deposits for securities trading activities managed by the

Opening balance
VND

22,501,852,364

Company
Closing balance
VND
Domestic investors 683,564,954
683,564,954

22,501,852,364
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Form B09a-CTCK

7.2,

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

Dividend, interest income from financial assets at FVTPL, loans, HTM investments, AFS

financial assets

Gain from held-to-maturity (HTM) investments
- Bond interest
Interest on loans and receivables

Revenue other than income from financial assets

Rewvenue from securities brokerage activities
Revenue from securities investment consulting
senices

Rewvenue from securities custody senices
Other operating income

Service provision operating expenses

Expenses for proprietary trading activities
Expenses for brokerage senices
Expenses for securities custodian senices
Other operating expenses

Financial income

Bank and loan interest
Other financail income

Financial expenses

Unrealized exchange loss

Current period
VND

Prior period
VND

6,506,712,325
6,506,712,325

7,778,630,132
7.778,630,132
183,235,366

6,506,712,325

7,961,865,498

Current period
VND

Prior period
VND

1,003,946,213
150,000,000

184,250,213
455,664,641

2,127,746,198

212,556,126
1,892,975,268

1,793,861,067

4,233,277,592

Current period

Prior period

VND VND

- 85,444,443
1,460,776,718 1,964,104,756
169,445,383 238,851,853
354,551,654 55,547,208

1,984,773,755

2,343,948,260

Current period

Prior period

VND VND
592,217,475 451,191,496
- 981,054,794
592,217,475 1,432,246,290

Current period
VND

Prior period
VND

18,794

18,794
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Form B09a-CTCK

7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

General and administration expenses

Management staff costs

Cost of materials management

Cost of tools, instruments and supplies
Fixed asset depreciation expense
Taxes, charges and fees

Cost of outsourced senices

Others

Other income and other expenses

Other income

Other expenses

- Fines and late payments
- Other expenses

Total other operating profit/(losses)

Corporate income tax expense

Corporate income tax expense based on taxable
profit in the current year (i)

Total current corporate income tax expense

Current period

Prior period

VND VND
2,625,092,700 2,735,406,100
12,657,249 -
70,962,663 135,386,891
752,481,775 763,763,275
69,820,000 4,000,000
1,888,375,419 1,306,096,578
345,058,333 198,254,684

5,764,448,139

5,142,907,528

Current period

Prior period

VND VND
2,043,802 6,922,319
836,302,179 56,586,944
745,334,863 -
90,967,316 56,586, 944

(834,258,377)

(49,664,625)

Current period Prior period
VND VND
229,118,796 2,248,144,066
229,118,796 2,248,144,066

(i) The current corporate income tax expense for the year was computed as follows:

Profit/(Loss) before tax

- Adjustments increase

+) Decrease in revaluation of financial assets at
FVTPL

+) Non-deductible expenses

- Adjustments decrease

+) Increase in revaluation of financial assets at
FVTPL

+) Carry forward losses from previous years
Profits subject to corporate income tax
Corporate income tax rate

Corporate income tax expense based on
taxable profit in the current year

Current period
VND

Prior period
VND

(19,468,708,198)

20,614,302,179
19,778,000,000
836,302,179

1,145,593,981

20%

24,618,868,967

(13,378,148,637)
(10,643, 328,000)

(2,734,820,637)
11,240,720,330
20%

229,118,796

2,248,144,066
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7.10. Basic earnings per share and Diluted earnings per share
Current period Prior period
a) Basic earnings per share = -
Accounting profit after corporate income tax (VND) (19,697,826,994) 22,370,724,901
Increasing or decreasing adjustments to accounting
profit to determine profit or loss attributable to - -
ordinary shareholders:
K}‘;:l%)or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (19,697,826,994) 22.370,724.901
Average ordinary shares in circulation for the year 45,133,300 45,133,300
(shares)
Basic earnings per share (VND/Share) (436) 496
b) Diluted earnings per share
Number of additional shares expected to be issued 70,000,000 50,000,000
(shares)
Diluted earnings per share (VND/Share) (171) 235
Diluted earnings per share have been recalculated and are affected by the planned additional share
issuance pursuant to Resolutions No. 01/2024/NQ/BHBCB-VISC dated 10" April 2024, and No.
01/2025/NQ/DHDCD-VISC dated 10" April 2025, of the Company’s Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.
8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
8.1. Types of financial instruments
Closing balance Opening balance
Cost Provision Cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Financial assets
Cash and cash 54,227,853,160 - 50,189,300,073 ’
equivalents
Financial assets at
fair value through 91,469,000,000 - 111,247,000,000 -
profit or loss (FVTPL)
Receivables 47,170,607,584 (8,645,420,690) 56,306,634,983 (8,645,420,690)
Receivables from
services provided by 62,921,080,378 (56,427,707,637) 62,473,718,735 (56,427,707,637)
the Company
Other receivables 9,418,183,190 - 9,491,074,055 -
Held-to-maturity
(HTM) investments 130,000,000,000 - 130,000,000,000
Other assets 8,880,278,687 - 8,208,448 172 -
404,087,002,999 (65,073,128,327) 428,006,176,018 (65,073,128,327)
8.2, Purposes and policies of financial risk management
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The Company's financial liabilities comprise mostly liabilities and borrowings, payables to suppliers
and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

operations. The Company has loans, trade and other receivables, cash and shortterm deposits that
arise directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. The Company has a system of
controls in place to maintain an acceptable balance between the cost arisen from risks and the cost of
managing the risks. The Management continually monitors the Company's risk management process
to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

Management reviews and agrees policies for monitoring each of these risks which are summarized
below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. There are four types of market risk: interest rate risk, currency
risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, covered warrants
and available-for-sale investments.

The Company manages market risk by analysing financial sensitivity of the Company as at 30" June
2025 and 31% December 2024. When analysing sensitivity, Management assumes that sensitivity of
Available-for-sale debt instruments in the statement of financial position and other related items in the
income statement is affected by changes in corresponding market risk. The analysis is based on
financial assets and liabilities held by the Company as at 30" June 2025 and 31% December 2024.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to market risk due to changes
in interest rate relates primarily to cash and short-term deposits of the Company. Financial liabilities
have fixed interest rate.

The Company manages interest rate risk by looking at the competitive structure of the market to identify
a proper interest rate policy which is favourable for purposes of the Company within its risk
management limits. The Company assesses that the risk resulting from interest rate changes on the
Company at the date of the report is negligible. The Company's bank deposits, certificates of deposit,
corporate bonds and loans are mostly fixed interest rate and withdrawn according to the maturity period
stipulated by each item. Fixed-rate loans are determined in each specific loan covenant.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (in which
revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company's accounting currency)
and its investments in overseas subsidiaries. ‘

The Company manages foreign exchange risk by considering current and expected market conditions
when the Company plans to buy and sell commodities in the future in foreign currencies. For the
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

purpose of minimizing foreign currency risks, the Company applies hedging measures by entering into
foreign currency derivative contracts with commercial banks.

At the date of the interim financial statements, the Company had no foreign currency loans, the impact
of foreign currency risks was eliminated from the interim financial situation.

Equity price risk

Listed and unlisted securities which are held by the Company are affected by market risk arising from
the uncertainty of future value of invested securities. The Company manages equity price risk by
establishing investment limits. The Company's Investment Council considers and approves
investments decisions in securities.

As at the reporting date, the fair value of investment in listed shares and fund certificates (FVTPL and
AFS) of the Company was VND 91,469,000,000. The 10% increase (or decrease) in market index
would possibly result in a corresponding increase (or decrease) in revenue from investment of the
Company, depending on its magnitude and length as wellas the Company's ownership position of
securities which have significant influence on market index.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty would not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customner contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily for receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks,
foreign exchanges activities and other financial instruments.

Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company based on its established policies, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality customers is evaluated on the basis
of Management's assessment.

QOutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Customer credit quality's impairment is
analysed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The Company closely monitors
outstanding receivables and operates a credit control unit to mitigate credit risk. Due to the fact that
the Company's receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

Bank deposits

he Company's bank balances are mainly maintained with high credit rating banks in Vietham. Credit
risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's Capital and Financial Business Division
in accordance with the Company's policy. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the statement of financial position at each reporting date is the carrying value as
presented in Notes to interim financial statements. The Company evaluates the concentration of credit
risk with respect to bank deposits as low.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting financial obligations.

The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises when the Company is unable to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due, primarily due to mismatches in the maturity terms of financial assets and
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

liabilities. The maturity terms of financial assets and liabilities reflect the remaining period of financial
assets and liabilities from the reporting date to the date of settlement set out in the contracts or terms
of issuance. For FVTPL and AFS financial assets, the maturity terms are determined based on the
liquidity of the assets (the ability to sell and purchase the assets in short term) on the market.

The Company monitors its liquidity risk by maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents, borrowings
deemed adequate by the Management to finance the Company's operations and to mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

Less than

More than

From 1 - 5 years Total
1 year 5 years
VND VND VND VND
Closing balance
GRsiT el cHah 54,227,853,160 - - 54,227,853,160
eguivalents
Financial assets at
fair value through 91,469,000,000 - - 91,469,000,000
profit or loss (FVTPL)
Held-to-maturity
(HTM) investments - 130,000,000,000 - 130,000,000,000
Receivables 119,509,871,152 - - 119,609,871,152
Other assets 1,348,853,078 7,531,425,609 - 8,880,278,687
266,555,577,390 137,531,425,609 - 404,087,002,999
Less than From 1 - 5 years More than Total
1 year 5 years
VND VND VND VND
Closing balance
Payables 11,682,509,485 - - 11,5682,509,485
11,582,509,485 - - 11,582,509,485
Less than From 1 - § years More than Total
1 year 5 years
VND VND VND VND

Opening balance
Cash and cash
equivalents

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

Held-to-maturity
(HTM) investments

Receivables
Other assets

50,189,300,073

111,247,000,000

128,271,427,773
608,755,600

130,000,000,000

7,689,692,572

50,189,300,073

111,247,000,000

130,000,000,000

128,271,427,773
8,298,448,172

290,316,483,446

137,689,692,572

428,006,176,018
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9.1.

9.2.

9.2.1.

Less than More than

From 1 - 56 years Total
1 year 5 years
VND VND VND VND
Opening balance
Payables 16,5656,337,285 - - 16,556,337,285
16,556,337,285 - - 16,556,337,285

The Executive Management assessed the liquidity risk at low level. The management believes that
the Company will be able to generate sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due.

OTHER INFORMATION
Events arising after the end of the period

The Executive Management of the Company affirms that, in the identity of the Executive Management,
in terms of material aspects, no unusual events occurred after the end of the fiscal year that would
affect the financial situation and The Company's activities need to be adjusted or presented in these
combined financial statements.

Transactions and balances with related parties

The related parties with the Company include key management members, the individuals involved
with key management members and other related parties.

Transactions and balances with key management members, the individuals involved with key
management members.

Key management members include members of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, and the

Executive Management. Individuals associated with key management members are close members
in the family of key management members.
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION

Form B09a-CTCK

1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City
NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9.2.2.

Income of key management members

Remuneration paid to the Company's key management members during the period was as follows:

Content

Current period

Prior period

VND VND

The Board of Directors 90,000,000 90,000,000
Nguyen Phuc Long Chairman 18,000,000 18,000,000
Duong Quang Trung Chairman 18,000,000 18,000,000
Dao Thi Thanh Member 18,000,000 18,000,000
Nguyen Viet Viet Member 18,000,000 18,000,000
Nguyen Xuan Bieu Member 18,000,000 18,000,000
The Board of Supervisors 42,000,000 42,000,000
Pham Thi Tu Anh Head of the Supervisory 18,000,000 18,000,000
Vu Thi Thanh Hai Member 12,000,000 12,000,000
Nguyen Kim Oanh Member 12,000,000 12,000,000
The Executive Management 842,330,000 816,400,000
Duong Quang Trung Chief Executive Officer 334,165,000 324,200,000
Nguyen Thi Thu Héing Deputy Chist Exeoutive 508,165,000 492,200,000

Officer

974,330,000 948,400,000

Transactions with key members of management and individuals related to key members of

management.

The Company does not have any transactions relating to sales and provision of services to key

management members and individuals related to key management members.

Balances with key management members and individuals associated with key management

members.

At the end of the accounting period, the Company had no balances with key management members

and individuals related to key management members.

Transactions and balances with other related parties

Other related parties to the Company include subsidiaries, joint-ventures, associates controlled
businesses, individuals with direct or indirect voting rights at the Company and intimately members
within their families, businesses run by key management employees and individuals with direct or
indirect voting rights of the Company and intimately members of their families.

Other related parties
Other related parties Location
Thang Long Investment Group Joint Stock  Hanoi
Sakura Real estate JSC Hanoi
Thang Long Phu Tho Investment JSC Hanoi

Relationship
With key management personnel
With key management personnel
With key management personnel
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VIET NAM FINANCIAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES CORPORATION Form B09a-CTCK
1st Floor and 8th Floor, Block B, Song Da Building, Pham Hung Street, Tu Liem District, Hanoi City

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9.3.

9.4.

Balance of accounts receivable/(payable) with other related parties

Current period Prior period
Content VND VND
Thang Long Investment Listed Shares 22.649,000,000 42.427.000,000

Group Joint Stock
Sakura Real estate JSC Unlisted Shares 31,500,000,000 31,500,000,000

Thang Long Phu Tho

Unlisted Shares 34,320,000,000 34,320,000,000
Investment JSC

Segment information

The company is not required to prepare segment reports because it does not satisfy one of the three
conditions for preparing segment reports by geographical area as prescribed in Circular 20/2008/TT-
BTC dated 20" March 20086 of the Ministry of Finance regarding guidance on the implementation of
six (08) accounting standards issued under Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15" February 2005
of the Ministry of Finance.

Comparative figures

The comparative figures in the interim statement of financial position are derived from the Company's
audited financial statements for the fiscal year 2024, which were audited by UHY Auditing and
Consulting Co., Ltd. The comparative figures in the interim statement of profit or loss and the interim
statement of cash flows are derived from the Company's interim financial statements for the six-month
period ended in 2024, which were reviewed by UHY Auditing and Consulting-Co., Ltd.
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PreparerfChief Accountant " Chief Executive Officer )
VU HUYEN TRAM DUONG QUANG TRUNG

Hanoi, Vietnam
14t August 2025
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